
SOUTHERN GROVE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICTS 1-6 

PORT ST. LUCIE  
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JUNE 1, 2022 
10:30 A.M. 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.southerngrovecdd1.org 
www.southerngrovecdd2.org 
www.southerngrovecdd3.org 
www.southerngrovecdd4.org 
www.southerngrovecdd5.org 
www.southerngrovecdd6.org 

561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free
561.630.4923 Facsimile

http://www.southerngrovecdd1.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd2.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd3.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd4.org/
http://www.southerngrovecdd5.org/


 
AGENDA 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’s 1-6 
Tradition Town Hall 
10799 SW Civic Lane 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
OR 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011  

Meeting ID: 334 102 5011 
Dial In at: 1 929 436 2866  

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
June 1st, 2022 

10:30 a.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………….........Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions 

E. Comments from the Public Not on the Agenda  

F. Consent Items 

1. Approval of April 6, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes........................................................Page 2 

2. Approval of WA #19-144-182; Belterra Phase 1 Plat 2…………………………………………Page 6 

3. Approval of WA #19-144-183; Plat No.39……………………………………………………...Page 8 

4. Approval of WA #19-144-184; Plat No. 40 Replat………………………………………...........Page 10 

5. Approval of WA #19-144-185; AHS Residential – Irrigation…………………………………..Page 12 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Ratifying and Approving the CPM Services Contract, Second Addendum, by CDD  
No. 1……………………………………………………………………………………………..Page 14 

2. Consider Memorandum No. 22-03; Board Member Elections 2022 - Notice of Qualifying 
Period; Election of Board Supervisors for District No. 6………………………...……………..Page 61 

3. Consider Approval of 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 15); District No. 5 Special Assessment  
Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure)………………………………………………..Page 70 

4. Consider Rarifying and Approving the Partial Abandonment and Termination of Water 
Management Easement; by CDD No. 5…………………………………………………………Page 77 

5. Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s: 1 & 2 / Seat No. 4 

6. Appointment to Vacant Board Seats - District No.’s: 1 & 2 / Seat No. 4 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

2. Attorney’s Report 

3. Engineer’s Report 

4. Financial Report………………………….……………………...................................................Page 82 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011


5. Founder’s Report 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn  



SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-6 
REVISED FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Southern Grove Community Development District Nos. 1-6 
(“Districts”) will conduct Regular Board Meetings of the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) for the purpose 
of conducting the business of the Districts that may properly come before the Board.  The following 
meetings will be held at 10:30 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, Port St. 
Lucie, Florida 34987 on the following dates: 
 

March 2, 2022 
April 6, 2022 

*May 4, 2022* 
June 1, 2022 
July 6, 2022 

*August 3, 2022* 
September 7, 2022 

 
*An Irrigation System Rate Committee Meeting will take place at 9:00 a.m. at Tradition Town Hall 
located at 10799 SW Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 on the above dates, as indicated.* 
 
The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida 
law for community development districts.  Meetings may be continued to a date, time and place to be 
specified on the record.  A copy of the agenda for the meetings may be obtained from the District 
Manager’s office located at 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone may be present at the meeting location so that one or more Supervisors may attend the meeting 
and be fully informed of the discussions taking place.  
 
Any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of a disability or physical 
impairment should contact the District Office at 772-345-5119 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least 
five calendar days prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida 
Relay Service at 1-800-955-8770, who can aid you in contacting the District Office. 
 
Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at a meeting is advised that they will need a record 
of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 
 
 
SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NOS. 1-6 
 
www.southerngrovecdd1.org 
 
PUBLISH:  ST. LUCIE NEWS TRIBUNE    02/21/22 

1



SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO.’S 1-6 
Tradition Town Hall 
10799 SW Civic Lane 

Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
OR 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011 
Meeting ID: 334 102 5011 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
April 6, 2022 

10:30 a.m. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Southern Grove Community Development District No’s. 1-6 of 
April 6th, 2022, was called to order at 10:34 a.m. in the Tradition Town Hall located at 10799 SW 
Civic Lane, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the St. Lucie News Tribune on February 21st, 2022, as legally required.   
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in 
order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
CDD #’s 1-6   
Chairman Frank Covelli: #1,2,3,4,5,6 Present  
Vice Chair  Anissa Cruz: #1,2,3,4,5,6 Present 
Supervisor  Steven Dassa: #1,2,3,5 Present  
Supervisor Tyler Gaffney: #1,2 Present  
Supervisor  David Graham: #3,4,5,6 Present via Zoom 
Supervisor Stephen Okiye #4,6 Present via Zoom 
Supervisor Wes McCurry: #3,4,5,6 Present  
Supervisor James Fitzgerald: #1,4 Absent  

 
Staff members in attendance were:  
 
District Manager B. Frank Sakuma, Jr.  Special District Services, Inc. 
Assistant District Manager Jessica Wargo Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Dan Harrell Gonano & Harrell Law 

 
Also present via Zoom were: District Manager - Andrew Karmeris with Special District Services, Inc; 
District Engineer - Kelly Cranford with Culpepper and Terpening; and Tony Palumbo with Mattamy 
Homes (See attached sign-in sheet) 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
Staff requested the addition of (1) item under “New Business”: 

2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/3341025011


1 – (New Business/H-6): WA #19-144-182; Cheney Brothers  
 
A Motion was made by CDD No. 1 Mr. Covelli, seconded by Mr. Dassa and passed unanimously to 
Adopt the Agenda as amended.  
 
*Mr. Tyler Gaffney took the Oath of Office for District No.’s 1 & 2/ Seat No. 1, before the meeting 
continued.  
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
F. CONSENT ITEMS 
 

1. February 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
 

Minutes of the February 9, 202, Regular Board Meeting. 
 

2. WA #19-144-103; Control Structure CS-08 
 

WA #19-144-103; Authorize the Chairman to sign the SFWMD Form 0970 transferring the operation 
and maintenance of Structure CS-08 to the CDD. 
 

3. WA #19-144-123; Duda Canal Expansion 
 

WA #19-144-123; Authorize the Chairman to sign the SFWMD Form 0970 once the remainder of the 
required documentation (Bill of Sale, Lien Release, Warranty) have been received be the CDD. 

 
4. WA #19-144-178; Becker Road West Extension 

 
WA #19-144-178; Approve proposed project connecting to the Southern Grove Master Stormwater 
System. 
 
Approve payment of the Work Authorization Application Review and Initial Inspection fee in the 
amount of $1,669.00 from the Southern Grove 2021 Bond Funds. 
 

5. WA #19-144-179; Capstone at Tradition – Irrigation 
 

WA #19-144-179; Approve proposed project connecting to the Tradition Irrigation System under the 
following conditions: 

 
1-Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the CDD Engineer’s 
satisfaction.  
 

6. WA #19-144-180; Tradition Commerce Park; 

WA #19-144-180; Approve proposed project connecting to the Southern Grove Master Stormwater 
System under the following conditions; 

 
1-Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the CDD Engineer’s 
satisfaction.  

3



 

7. WA #19-144-181; Plat No. 41 (Lot 4+ 5.29 acres) 
 

WA #19-144-181; Approve proposed replat. 
 

A Motion was made by CDD No.1 Mr. Covelli, seconded by Mr. Dassa and passed unanimously to 
Approve all item(s) under Consent. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no matters of old business to come before the Board. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Ratify and Approve Service Contract for Becker Road Drainage Improvements; ITB 
#2022-02 - District No. 1 

 
A Motion was made by CDD No. 1 Mr. Dassa, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to 
Ratify and Approve the Service Contract for Becker Road Drainage Improvements – ITB #2022-02 for 
Felix Associates of Florida. 

 
2. Ratify and Approve 2021 Bond Requisition (No. 12); District No. 5  
      Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2021 (Community Infrastructure 
 

A Motion was made by CDD No. 5 Mr. Dassa, seconded by Mr. Covelli and passed unanimously to 
Ratify and Approve Bond Requisition No. 12 for Guettler Brothers Construction, LLC. 

 
3. Memorandum No. 22-02; Board Member Elections 2022 - Notice of Qualifying 
      Period; Election of Board Supervisors for District No.’s 4 and 5 
 

Mr. Harrell reviewed Memorandum No. 22-02 and answered questions.  
 
A Motion was made by CDD Nos. 4 and 5 Mr. Covelli, seconded by Mr. Dassa passed unanimously to 
authorize publication of notice of qualifying period for Board Member Elections 2022. 
 

4. FPL Easement – Legacy Park 

A Motion was made by CDD No. 5 Mr. Covelli, seconded by Mr. Dassa passed unanimously to consider 
WO #10816624; FPL Easement at Legacy Park or ask for Board’s permission to execute once the District 
Engineer and Attorney approve of form and content. 
 

5.   Notification of Landowners’ Election – to be held on November 2, 2022 
 

Mr. Sakuma advised all in attendance about the Landowners’ Election to be held on November 2nd, 2022, 
at the Tradition Town Hall for Southern Grove CDD Nos. 1-6. 

  

6. WA #19-144-182; Cheney Brothers 
 
WA #19-144-182; Approve proposed project connecting to the Southern Grove Master Stormwater 
System under the following conditions. 

4



 
1-Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the CDD Engineer’s 
satisfaction.  
 
A Motion was made by CDD No. 1 Mr. Covelli, seconded by Mr. Dassa passed unanimously to Approve  
WA #19-144-182. 
                          
I.     ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

1. Manager’s Report 
 
Mr. Sakuma had nothing further to report at this time. 

 
2. Attorney’s Report 

 
Mr. Harrell had no further report. 
 

3. Engineer’s Report 
 

Ms. Cranford had no additional items to note. 
 

4. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Karmeris offered to answer questions about the financials. There were no questions from 
Supervisors.  

 
5. Founder’s Report  

 
No Founder’s report was offered. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no Board comments.  
 
K. ADJORNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Covelli adjourned the meeting at 
10:49a.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 
_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Print Signature    Print Signature  
 

5



 

 

Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date June 1, 2022 
 

 
Subject:   SG - Belterra Phase 1 Plat 2  
 Work Authorization No.  WA-19-144-182 
 C&T Project No. 19-144.SG2.001.0522.P 
  
Background: 

 On May 2, 2022, the CDD Engineer received an application to replat several tracts 
within Belterra Phase 1, Plat 1.   Three water management tracts are dedicated to 
the Southern Grove CDD for operation and maintenance. 

 
Recommended Action: 

Ratify the CDD chairman signing the mylar of the proposed plat.  
 
Location:  Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.02  

 
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

 
Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 

expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 
 
Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 
 
Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by:  Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE          May 19, 2022                    

6



State of Florida, Maxar, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc.

EXHIBIT 1
BELTERRA PHASE 1

PLAT 2
SITE LOCATION MAP

Work Authorization #:
19-144-182
Project #:
19-144.SG2.001.0522.P
Scale: 1" = 2,000'
Date: 5/19/2022

Legend
Subject Property

Other Parcels

0 1,000 2,000
Feet

P
:\P

ro
j-2

01
9\

19
-0

85
 T

ra
di

tio
n 

C
D

D
\G

IS
\1

9-
08

5 
B

as
e 

G
IS

\1
9-

08
5 

B
as

e.
ap

rx

Belterra Phase 1 Plat 2
WA#: 19-144-182

Project #:19-144.SG2.001.0522.P

7



 

 

Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date June 1, 2022 
 

 
Subject:   SG - Plat No. 39  
 Work Authorization No.  19-144-183 
 C&T Project No. 19-144.SG3.021.0422.P 
  
Background: 

On April 1, 2022, the CDD Engineer received an application to replace Tract A 
within Southern Grove Plat 35.  Water management tracts and interconnecting 
drainage easements are proposed to be dedicated to the CDD.  

 
Recommended Action: 

Approve CDD Chair to sign plat mylar under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the 
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction. 

 
Location:  Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.03  

 
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

 
Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 

expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 
 
Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 
 
Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by:  Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE          May 19, 2022                    

8



State of Florida, Maxar, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc.

EXHIBIT 1
SG - PLAT NO. 39

SITE LOCATION MAP

Work Authorization #:
19-144-183
Project #:
19-144.SG3.021.0422.P
Scale: 1" = 1,500'
Date: 5/19/2022

Legend
Streets

Subject Property

Other Parcels

0 750 1,500
Feet

P
:\P

ro
j-2

01
9\

19
-0

85
 T

ra
di

tio
n 

C
D

D
\G

IS
\1

9-
08

5 
B

as
e 

G
IS

\1
9-

08
5 

B
as

e.
ap

rx

SG - Plat No. 39
WA#: 19-144-183

Project #:19-144.SG3.021.0422.P

9



Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date June 1, 2022 

Subject: SG - Plat No. 40 Replat  
Work Authorization No.  WA 19-144-184 
C&T Project No. 19-144.SG6.012.0422.P 

Background: 
On April 18, 2022, the Southern Grove CDD Engineer received a Work 
Authorization application for replatting Parcel 1 within Southern Grove 40.   None 
of the proposed infrastructure will be dedicated to or maintained by the CDD.  

Recommended Action: 
Approve proposed replat. 

Location: Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.06 

Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 
expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 

Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 

Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by: Action Taken: 

Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE  May 19, 2022 

10



State of Florida, Maxar, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc.

EXHIBIT 1
SG - PLAT NO. 40

REPLAT
SITE LOCATION MAP

Work Authorization #:
19-144-184
Project #:
19-144.SG6.012.0422.P
Scale: 1" = 1,500'
Date: 5/19/2022

Legend
Subject Property

Other Parcels

0 750 1,500
Feet

P
:\P

ro
j-2

01
9\

19
-0

85
 T

ra
di

tio
n 

C
D

D
\G

IS
\1

9-
08

5 
B

as
e 

G
IS

\1
9-

08
5 

B
as

e.
ap

rx

SG - Plat No. 40 Replat
WA#: 19-144-184

Project #:19-144.SG6.012.0422.P

11



 

 

Southern Grove Community Development District 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Board Meeting Date June 1, 2022 
 

 
Subject:   SG - AHS Residential - Irrigation  
 Work Authorization No.  19-144.185 
 C&T Project No. 19-144.SG5.054.0422.I 
  
Background: 

On May 4, 2022, the CDD Engineer received application for Right of Way and 
Irrigation Work Authorizations.  The applicant has installed an irrigation well within 
the CDD's water management tract for Lake 25D.  The request is to allow the well 
to remain as the source of irrigation for AHS.  

 
Recommended Action: 

Approve proposed project connecting to the Tradition Irrigation System and 
operate an irrigation well within Southern Grove CDD’s water management tract 
under the following conditions: 

1. Responding to the outstanding Request for Additional Information to the 
CDD Engineer’s satisfaction. 

 
Location:  Southern Grove Community Development District CDD.05  

 
Within Tradition Irrigation Service Area? Yes  

 
Fiscal Information:   This project does not include infrastructure dedicated to the CDD.  It is not 

expected to impact the CDD Stormwater System operational budget. 
 
Grant Related?  No  
Additional Comments: None 
 
Board Action: 
Moved by: Seconded by:  Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
Item Prepared by: Kelly E Cranford, PE          May 19, 2022                    

12



State of Florida, Maxar, Esri, HERE, Garmin, GeoTechnologies, Inc.

EXHIBIT 1
AHS RESIDENTIAL -

IRRIGATION
SITE LOCATION MAP

Work Authorization #:
19-144-185
Project #:
19-144.SG5.054.0422.I
Scale: 1" = 1,000'
Date: 5/19/2022

Legend
Streets

Subject Property

Other Parcels

0 500 1,000
Feet

P
:\P

ro
j-2

01
9\

19
-0

85
 T

ra
di

tio
n 

C
D

D
\G

IS
\1

9-
08

5 
B

as
e 

G
IS

\1
9-

08
5 

B
as

e.
ap

rx

AHS Residential - Irrigation
WA#: 19-144-185

Project #:19-144.SG5.054.0422.I

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



Pro-Rata Share of Costs 
 
 
Total Annual-Contract Value: $1,190,325.60 
(This includes the addition of 1.9 miles of roadway service per Second 
Addendum to Contract) 

Annual Cost Allocation: 
Tradition Community Association:  $223,509.13  (18.8%) 
Tradition Commercial Association:  $105,853.19  (8.9%) .4 miles 
Tradition CDD No. 1:    $730,030.90 (61.3%) .4 miles 
Southern Grove CDD No. 1:  $130,932.25 (11%) 1.1 miles 
 
 

 
 
NOTE: These figures are as of date of Second Addendum to Contract. These figures 
will fluctuate as new areas of maintenance are turned over. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 SOG 1882001 Bd Mbr Elecs Qlf'g Period 2022 22-03 2d MEM  

Law Offices 
of 

GONANO & HARRELL 
A PARTNERSHIP OF PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

 ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW  
DOUGLAS E. GONANO 

Board Certified Real Estate Lawyer 
email: dgonano@gh-law.com 

 
ALEXZANDER D. GONANO 

email: agonano@gh-law.com 

TD BANK BUILDING 
1600 South Federal Highway, Suite 200 

Fort Pierce, Florida 34950-5178 
Telephone (772) 464 - 1032 
Facsimile (772) 464 - 0282 

DANIEL B. HARRELL 
Board Certified in Education Law 

email: dharrell@gh-law.com 
 
 

    
VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION ONLY 

 
MEMORANDUM NO. 22-03       April 20, 2022 
 
MEMORANDUM TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SOUTHERN 
GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 
 

Re: District No. 6 Board Member Elections 2022 
 

Notice of Qualifying Period—Elections of Members of the Board of Supervisors of 
District No. 6 

 
G&H File No. 1882-001 

 
 

As addressed in prior Memorandum No. 22-02 (copy attached), the number of qualified 
electors (registered voters) residing in each of District Nos. 4 and 5 currently exceeds 250, more than 
six years have passed since the initial appointments to the Boards to those Districts, and as provided in 
Section 190.006(3)(a)2.b, Florida Statutes, the Boards of District Nos. 4 and 5 must commence 
conversion to elections by qualified electors in 2022.  The Districts have now received 
correspondence from the Supervisor of Elections, copy attached, reflecting that the number of 
qualified electors residing in District No. 6 likewise has exceeded 250, and therefore District No. 6 
must also commence conversion to elections by qualified electors this year. 

 
The terms of three seats on the Board of District No. 6 will expire this year.  Two of the 

expiring seats will be subject to election by qualified electors (registered voters), each to a four-year 
term, while the remaining expiring seat will be filled by landowner election, also to a four-year term.  
Board member elections to be held in 2022 for District No. 6 may therefore be summarized as follows 
(correcting the summary provided in Memorandum No. 22-02): 

 
District No. 6.  As explained above, in 2022 the Board of District No. 6 will commence 

conversion to election by qualified electors.  The terms of Seats 1, 3, and 4 are expiring this year 
(currently occupied by The Honorable Stephen Okiye, Frank Covelli, and Anissa Cruz, respectively).  
Seats 1 and 3 will be subject to election by qualified electors, and Seat 4 subject to election by 
landowners, all to four-year terms that will commence in November 2022. 

 
As described in Memorandum No. 22-02, Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, requires 

each community development district to publish a notice of the qualifying period for each election of 
Board members whose seats are subject to election by registered voters residing in the district.  The 

61



Members, Boards of Supervisors 
April 20, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

 
SOG 1882001 Bd Mbr Elecs Qlf'g Period 2022 22-03 2d MEM  

notice must be published at least two weeks prior to the start of the qualifying period.  In 2022, the 
qualifying period commences at noon on Monday, June 13, and closes at noon on Friday, June 17, 
although qualifying papers may be submitted beginning May 30 for processing and filing during the 
qualifying period. 

 
A final attachment is a proposed form of the required notice of the qualifying period for the 

District No. 6 Board seats that are up for election by qualified electors in 2022.  By copy of this 
memorandum to the District Manager, I respectfully request that this matter be placed on the agenda 
of a future Board meeting.  At that time, the Board of District No. 6 should consider authorizing 
publication of the notice on or about May 9. 

 
 Please advise if you have any question. 
 
 
  Daniel B . Harrell 
       Daniel B. Harrell 
 
DBH/mm 
 
Attachments 
 
cc: The Honorable Gertrude Walker 
 Mr. B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. 
 Ms. Jesse Wargo 

Ms. Laura Archer 

62



 SOG 1882001 Bd Mbr Elecs Qlf'g Period 2022 22-02 MEM 

Law Offices 
of 

GONANO & HARRELL 
A PARTNERSHIP OF PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS 

 ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW  
DOUGLAS E. GONANO 

Board Certified Real Estate Lawyer 
email: dgonano@gh-law.com 

 
ALEXZANDER D. GONANO 

email: agonano@gh-law.com 

TD BANK BUILDING 
1600 South Federal Highway, Suite 200 

Fort Pierce, Florida 34950-5178 
Telephone (772) 464 - 1032 
Facsimile (772) 464 - 0282 

DANIEL B. HARRELL 
Board Certified in Education Law 

email: dharrell@gh-law.com 
 
 

    
VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION ONLY 

 
MEMORANDUM NO. 22-02       March 4, 2022 
  
MEMORANDUM TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARDS OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SOUTHERN 
GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS  
 

Re: Board Member Elections 2022 
 

Notice of Qualifying Period—Elections of Members of the Boards of Supervisors of 
District Nos. 4 and 5 

 
G&H File No. 1882-001 

 
 

As previously reported by the District Manager, the number of qualified electors (registered 
voters) residing in each of District Nos. 4 and 5 has now exceeded 250; a copy of correspondence 
received from the Supervisor of Elections last spring is attached.  Moreover, the initial Boards for 
District Nos. 4 and 5 were appointed in 2007, and more than six years have passed since those initial 
appointments.  Therefore, in accordance with Section 190.006(3)(a)2.b, Florida Statutes, the Boards 
of District Nos. 4 and 5 must commence conversion to elections by qualified electors in 2022. 

 
The terms of three seats on each of the Boards of District Nos. 4 and 5 will expire this year.  

Two of the expiring seats will be subject to election by qualified electors (registered voters), each to a 
four-year term, while the remaining expiring seat will be filled by landowner election, also to a four-
year term.  Expiring Board member seats on the Boards of District Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 6 will continue to 
be filled by landowner election. 

 
Board member elections to be held in 2022 may therefore be summarized as follows: 
 
District No. 1 and 2.  These Districts, the Boards of which were also initially appointed in 

2007, to date do not have sufficient registered voters to commence conversion to election by qualified 
electors.  Therefore, Seats 1, 2, and 5 on each of these Boards, the terms of which will expire this year 
(currently occupied by The Honorable Tyler Gaffney, Frank Covelli, and Anissa Cruz, respectively), 
will be subject to landowner election in November 2022.  On each Board, the two candidates 
receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected to serve four-year terms, and the remaining 
candidate elected shall serve a two-year term, all commencing in November 2022. 

 

63



Members, Boards of Supervisors 
March 4, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 

 
SOG 1882001 Bd Mbr Elecs Qlf'g Period 2022 22-02 MEM 

District No. 3.  This District, the Board of which was also initially appointed in 2007, to date 
does not have sufficient registered voters to commence conversion to election by qualified electors.  
Therefore, Seats 1, 3, and 4 on this Board, the terms of which will expire this year (currently occupied 
by The Honorable David Graham, Wes McCurry, and Anissa Cruz, respectively), will be subject to 
landowner election in November 2022.  The two candidates receiving the highest number of votes 
shall be elected to serve four-year terms, and the remaining candidate elected shall serve a two-year 
term, all commencing in November 2022. 

 
District No. 4.  As explained above, in 2022 the Board of this District will commence 

conversion to election by qualified electors.  The terms of Seats 1, 3, and 4 are expiring this year 
(currently occupied by The Honorable Stephen Okiye, Frank Covelli, and Anissa Cruz, respectively).  
Seats 1 and 3 will be subject to election by qualified electors, and Seat 4 subject to election by 
landowners, all to four-year terms that will commence in November 2022. 

 
District No. 5.  As also explained above, in 2022 the Board of this District will likewise 

commence conversion to election by qualified electors.  The terms of Seats 1, 3, and 4 are expiring 
this year (currently occupied by The Honorable David Graham, Wes McCurry, and Anissa Cruz, 
respectively).  As with District No. 4, Seats 1 and 3 will be subject to election by qualified electors, 
and Seat 4 subject to election by landowners, all to four-year terms that will commence in November 
2022. 

 
District No. 6.  This District, the Board of which was also initially appointed in 2007, to date 

does not have sufficient registered voters to commence conversion to election by qualified electors.  
Therefore, Seats 1, 3, and 4 on this Board, the terms of which expire this year (currently occupied by 
The Honorable Stephen Okiye, Frank Covelli, and Anissa Cruz, respectively), will be subject to 
landowner election in November 2022.  The two candidates receiving the highest number of votes 
shall be elected to serve four-year terms, and the remaining candidate elected shall serve a two-year 
term, all commencing in November 2022. 

 
Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, requires each community development district to 

publish a notice of the qualifying period for each election of Board members whose seats are subject 
to election by qualified electors (that is, registered voters residing in the respective district).  The 
notice must be published at least two weeks prior to the start of the qualifying period.  In 2022, the 
qualifying period commences at noon on Monday, June 13, and closes at noon on Friday, June 17, 
although qualifying papers may be submitted beginning May 30 for processing and filing during the 
qualifying period. 

 
Attached for District Nos. 4 and 5 are proposed forms of the required notices of the qualifying 

period.  By copy of this memorandum to the District Manager, I respectfully request that this matter 
be placed on the agenda of a future Board meeting.  At that time, the Boards of District Nos. 4 and 5 
should consider authorizing publication of the respective notice on or about May 9. 

 
Please advise if you have any question. 

64



Members, Boards of Supervisors 
March 4, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 

 
SOG 1882001 Bd Mbr Elecs Qlf'g Period 2022 22-02 MEM 

 
 
 
       Daniel B. Harrell 
 
DBH/mm 
 
Attachments 
 
cc: The Honorable Gertrude Walker 
 Mr. B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. 
 Ms. Jesse Wargo 

 

65



NOTICE OF QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR CANDIDATES 
FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the qualifying period for candidates for the office of 
Supervisor of Southern Grove Community Development District No. 4 (“District”) will 
commence at noon on June 13, 2022, and will close at noon on June 17, 2022.  As provided in 
Section 99.061(8), Florida Statutes, qualifying papers may be submitted beginning May 30, 
2022, to be processed and filed during the qualifying period.  Candidates must qualify for the 
office of Supervisor of the District with the St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections, at one of 
the following locations (the Supervisor of Elections recommends that qualifying papers filed 
during the June 13-17 qualifying period be submitted to the Fort Pierce office): 
 
 St. Lucie West South County Annex  Walton Road County Admin. Annex 
 250 NW Country Club Drive   1664 S.E. Walton Road 
 Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986   Port St. Lucie, Florida 34952 
 Telephone: (772) 871-5410   Telephone: (772) 337-5623 
 
 Orange Blossom Business Center   Tradition-Located inside the Tax Collectors 

4132 Okeechobee Road   Office 
 Fort Pierce, Florida 34947   10264 S.W. Village Parkway 
 Telephone: (772) 462-1500   Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 

Telephone: (772) 462-1500 
 
 
 All candidates shall qualify for individual seats in accordance with Section 99.061, 
Florida Statutes, and must also be qualified electors of the District.  A qualified elector is any 
person at least 18 years of age who also is a citizen of the United States, a legal resident of the 
State of Florida and of the District, and who is registered to vote with the St. Lucie County 
Supervisor of Elections.  Campaigns shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 106, Florida 
Statues. 
 The District has two seats up for election, specifically Seats 1 and 3.  Each seat carries a 
four year term of office.  Elections are nonpartisan and will be held at the same time as the 
general election on November 8, 2022, in the manner prescribed by law for general elections. 
 For additional information, please contact the St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections. 
 Dated this 6th day of May, 2022. 
 
      B. FRANK SAKUMA, JR., District Manager 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 
 

Publish: May 9, 2022 

66



NOTICE OF QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR CANDIDATES 
FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the qualifying period for candidates for the office of 
Supervisor of Southern Grove Community Development District No. 5 (“District”) will 
commence at noon on June 13, 2022, and will close at noon on June 17, 2022.  As provided in 
Section 99.061(8), Florida Statutes, qualifying papers may be submitted beginning May 30, 
2022, to be processed and filed during the qualifying period.  Candidates must qualify for the 
office of Supervisor of the District with the St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections, at one of 
the following locations (the Supervisor of Elections recommends that qualifying papers filed 
during the June 13-17 qualifying period be submitted to the Fort Pierce office): 
 
 St. Lucie West South County Annex  Walton Road County Admin. Annex 
 250 NW Country Club Drive   1664 S.E. Walton Road 
 Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986   Port St. Lucie, Florida 34952 
 Telephone: (772) 871-5410   Telephone: (772) 337-5623 
 
 Orange Blossom Business Center   Tradition-Located inside the Tax Collectors 
 4132 Okeechobee Road   Office 
 Fort Pierce, Florida 34947   10264 S.W. Village Parkway 

Telephone: (772) 462-1500   Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
Telephone: (772) 462-1500 

 
 
 All candidates shall qualify for individual seats in accordance with Section 99.061, 
Florida Statutes, and must also be qualified electors of the District.  A qualified elector is any 
person at least 18 years of age who also is a citizen of the United States, a legal resident of the 
State of Florida and of the District, and who is registered to vote with the St. Lucie County 
Supervisor of Elections.  Campaigns shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 106, Florida 
Statues. 
 The District has two seats up for election, specifically Seats 1 and 3.  Each seat carries a 
four year term of office.  Elections are nonpartisan and will be held at the same time as the 
general election on November 8, 2022, in the manner prescribed by law for general elections. 
 For additional information, please contact the St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections. 
 Dated this 6th day of May, 2022. 
 
      B. FRANK SAKUMA, JR., District Manager 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 
 

Publish: May 9, 2022 

67



 
April 18, 2022 
 
 
Mr. B. Frank Sakuma, Jr. 
10807 SW Tradition Square  
Port Saint Lucie, FL 34987 
 
Dear Mr. Sakuma: 
 
This letter is in reference to the number of registered voters as of April 15, 2022 in the Community 
Development Districts listed below based on the previous mapping forwarded by your organization.  If 
any of your mapping information has changed, please forward the applicable documentation to our office 
as soon as possible. 
 

CDD NAME REGISTERED VOTERS 

Southern Grove 1 0 

Southern Grove 2 0 

Southern Grove 3 0 

Southern Grove 4 547 

Southern Grove 5 718 

Southern Grove 6 313 

Tradition 1 0 

Tradition 2 0 

Tradition 3 2303 

Tradition 4 1634 

Tradition 5 2126 

Tradition 6 1882 

Tradition 7 144 

Tradition 8 0 

Tradition 9 0 

Tradition 10 0 

 
 
Please contact Kris Barcomb at 772-462-1508 if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Gertrude Walker 
St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections 

 

68



NOTICE OF QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR CANDIDATES 

FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 

 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the qualifying period for candidates for the office of 
Supervisor of Southern Grove Community Development District No. 6 (“District”) will 
commence at noon on June 13, 2022, and will close at noon on June 17, 2022.  As provided in 
Section 99.061(8), Florida Statutes, qualifying papers may be submitted beginning May 30, 
2022, to be processed and filed during the qualifying period.  Candidates must qualify for the 
office of Supervisor of the District with the St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections, at one of 
the following locations (the Supervisor of Elections recommends that qualifying papers filed 
during the June 13-17 qualifying period be submitted to the Fort Pierce office): 
 
 St. Lucie West South County Annex  Walton Road County Admin. Annex 
 250 NW Country Club Drive   1664 S.E. Walton Road 
 Port St. Lucie, Florida 34986   Port St. Lucie, Florida 34952 
 Telephone: (772) 871-5410   Telephone: (772) 337-5623 
 
 Orange Blossom Business Center   Tradition-Located inside the Tax Collectors 
 4132 Okeechobee Road   Office 
 Fort Pierce, Florida 34947   10264 S.W. Village Parkway 

Telephone: (772) 462-1500   Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
Telephone: (772) 462-1500 

 
 
 All candidates shall qualify for individual seats in accordance with Section 99.061, 
Florida Statutes, and must also be qualified electors of the District.  A qualified elector is any 
person at least 18 years of age who also is a citizen of the United States, a legal resident of the 
State of Florida and of the District, and who is registered to vote with the St. Lucie County 
Supervisor of Elections.  Campaigns shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 106, Florida 
Statues. 
 The District has two seats up for election, specifically Seats 1 and 3.  Each seat carries a 
four year term of office.  Elections are nonpartisan and will be held at the same time as the 
general election on November 8, 2022, in the manner prescribed by law for general elections. 
 For additional information, please contact the St. Lucie County Supervisor of Elections. 
 Dated this 6th day of May, 2022. 
 
      B. FRANK SAKUMA, JR., District Manager 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 
 

Publish: May 9, 2022 

69



REQUISITION NO.__15__

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021  

(COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE) 

The undersigned, a Responsible Officer of Southern Grove Community Development 
District No. 5 (the “Issuer”) hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement from the 
2021 Acquisition and Construction Account created under and pursuant to the terms of the Master 
Trust Indenture from the Issuer to U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), dated 
December 17, 2014, as supplemented by that certain Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
June 1, 2021 (collectively, the “Indenture”), (all capitalized terms used herein shall have the 
meaning ascribed to such terms in this Indenture); 

(A) Requisition Number: 15

(B) Name of Payee: Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.

(C) Amount Payable: $2,770.12

The undersigned hereby certifies that (check the applicable box in 1. below): 

1. This requisition is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project payable from the 2021
Acquisition and Construction Account  ___X____

OR

This requisition is for Working Capital Expenses payable from the 2021 Working
Capital Subaccount in the 2021 Acquisition and Construction Account  and the
amount of Working Capital Expenses that are the subject of this requisition,
together with all prior requisitions related to Working Capital Expenses does not
exceed the Working Capital Amount    _____

AND 

2. Each disbursement set forth above is a proper charge against the 2021 Acquisition
and Construction Account or 2021 Working Capital Subaccount therein, as
applicable.

[Include if applicable] 

70



Each disbursement set forth above is made as payment of a portion of the purchase price 
payable for the 2021 CI Project pursuant to a written acquisition agreement between the District 
and the other party named therein and the undersigned represents that such agreement has not been 
modified or amended and is in full force and effect on the date hereof. 

 
 

SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 5  

 
 
By:    
 Responsible Officer 
 
Date:____________________________________ 
 

[THE FOLLOWING IS NOT REQUIRED FOR REQUISITIONS RELATING TO  

WORKING CAPITAL EXPENSES] 

 
The undersigned, an authorized representative of the Consulting Engineer to the Issuer, 

hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2021 CI Project and is consistent with:  
(i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and specifications for the 
portion of the 2021 CI Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and (iii) 
the Engineer’s Report as supplemented and amended through the date hereof. 

 
The undersigned further certifies that (a) the improvements to be acquired with this 

disbursement will be (1) owned by the Issuer or another governmental entity and located on public 
property or within public rights of way or easements and (2) accessible by the general public and/or 
part of a public water management system; (b) the purchase price to be paid by the Issuer for the 
improvements to be acquired with this disbursement is no more than the lesser of (i) the fair market 
value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; (c) the 
plans and specifications for the improvements have been approved by all regulatory bodies 
required to approve them or such approval can reasonably be expected to be obtained; (d) all 
currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, 
installation and equipping of the portion of the 2021 CI Project for which disbursement is made 
have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (e) subject to permitted retainage 
under the applicable contracts, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen 
that have provided services or materials in connection with the portions of the 2021 CI Project for 
which disbursement is made hereby, if acquisition is being made pursuant to an acquisition 
agreement.  

 
[Include as applicable] 
 
The undersigned certifies that the amount of this disbursement relating to the TIM Project, 

when aggregated with the amount of all prior disbursements of proceeds of the 2021 Bonds for the 
TIM Project, does not exceed the TIM Project Amount and that no disbursements have been made 
for the TIM Project from proceeds of any bonds or other obligations of the Issuer issued prior to 
the date of issuance of the 2021 Bonds.  

71



 
 

 
[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

 
 
By:    
Name:    
Title:   
Date:  
 

 

72



PO No:

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

WA No:
Contract No:

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Invoice

Mr. B. Sakuma
District manager
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

February 28, 2022
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 94269

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Bond Requisition Required
Professional Services through February 28, 2022
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE 8.50 210.00 1,785.00
Sr. Construction Inspector 5.50 125.00 687.50

Totals 14.00 2,472.50
Total Labor 2,472.50

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
    Unit Billing
MILEAGE

9.52

                   $2,482.02Total this Invoice

 Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
94132 2/21/2022 9,959.22
Total 9,959.22

73



Project 9426920-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

10:00:01 AMInvoice 94269 Dated 2/28/2022Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Wednesday, March 30, 2022Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 2/8/2022    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 2/9/2022    1.75 210.00  367.50
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 2/10/2022    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 2/16/2022    1.50 210.00  315.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 2/18/2022    1.00 210.00  210.00
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 2/21/2022    1.50 210.00  315.00

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 2/4/2022 Ovt 1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 2/7/2022    1.50 125.00  187.50
Christensen, Frans 2/9/2022    2.50 125.00  312.50

Totals 14.00 2,472.50
Total Labor 2,472.50

   $2,472.50Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $2,472.50

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

   Unit Billing
MILEAGE

2/9/2022 17.0 Miles @ 0.56 9.52
9.52

Total this Phase $9.52

$2,482.02Total this Project

$2,482.02Total this Report

Page 2

74



Contract No:
PO No:

WA No:

Client Project Name
Client Project No.

Project Manager: Marcelo Dimitriou, P.E.

Invoice

Principal: James 'Butch' Terpening, Jr., P.E.

Mr. B. Sakuma
District manager
Southern Grove Community Development District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL  33410

April 18, 2022
Project No: 20-203
Invoice No: 94435

Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Consulting Engineers and Land Surveyors

2980 South 25th Street
Fort Pierce, Florida 34981

Phone (772)464-3537 /Fax (772)464-9497
accounting@ct-eng.com

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI
Bond Requisition Required
Professional Services through March 31, 2022
          Phase 5 Construction Services
          Tasks 5.01 Construction Services
 Professional Personnel

Hours Rate Amount
Principal Engineer, PE .75 210.00 157.50
Sr. Construction Inspector 1.00 125.00 125.00

Totals 1.75 282.50
Total Labor 282.50

                 Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense
    Unit Billing
MILEAGE

5.60

                   $288.10Total this Invoice

 Outstanding Invoices
Number Date Balance
94132 2/21/2022 9,959.22
94269 2/28/2022 2,482.02
Total 12,441.24

75



Project 9443520-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI Invoice

2:09:53 PMInvoice 94435 Dated 4/18/2022Culpepper & Terpening, Inc.
Monday, April 18, 2022Billing Backup

Project 20-203 Becker Road West Phase 1 CEI

Phase 5 Construction Services

Tasks 5.01 Construction Services

Professional Personnel
Hours Rate Amount

Principal Engineer, PE
Dimitriou, P.E., Marcelo 3/3/2022    .75 210.00  157.50

Sr. Construction Inspector
Christensen, Frans 2/28/2022    1.00 125.00  125.00

Totals 1.75 282.50
Total Labor 282.50

   $282.50Total this Tasks

Total this Phase $282.50

Phase 8 Reimbursable Expense

   Unit Billing
MILEAGE

2/28/2022 10.0 Miles @ 0.56 5.60
5.60

Total this Phase $5.60

$288.10Total this Project

$288.10Total this Report

Page 2

76



77



78



79



80



81



SOUTHERN GROVE COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS 1-6

Financial Report For
April 2022

82



SO
U

TH
ER

N
 G

R
O

VE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

TS
 #

1-
6 

R
EC

AP
FI

SC
AL

 Y
EA

R
 2

02
1/

20
22

O
C

TO
B

ER
 1

, 2
02

1 
- A

PR
IL

 3
0,

 2
02

2

FI
SC

AL
 Y

EA
R

 
FI

SC
AL

 Y
EA

R
 

20
21

/2
02

2
10

/0
1/

21
 - 

04
/3

0/
22

%
 O

f
AN

N
U

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

AC
TU

AL
 

B
ud

ge
t

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

EN
U

ES
O

 &
 M

 A
SS

ES
SM

EN
TS

 - 
AD

M
IN

 &
 M

AI
N

T
75

1,
39

1
72

8,
56

9
96

.9
6%

D
EB

T 
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

TS
 

96
9,

26
3

95
1,

03
2

98
.1

2%
BO

N
D

 P
R

EP
AY

M
EN

TS
0

96
,1

00
10

0.
00

%
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

IN
C

O
M

E
0

88
1

10
0.

00
%

ST
O

R
M

W
AT

ER
40

0,
00

0
65

1,
54

1
16

2.
89

%
O

TH
ER

 IN
C

O
M

E
0

14
2,

88
4

10
0.

00
%

O
TH

ER
 IN

C
O

M
E 

- S
PE

C
IA

L 
BO

N
D

 R
EV

0
0

10
0.

00
%

TI
M

 - 
D

EV
EL

O
PE

R
/ B

O
N

D
 F

U
N

D
ED

1,
11

3,
70

0
0

FU
N

D
 C

AR
R

Y 
FO

R
W

AR
D

0
0

0.
00

%
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

3,
23

4,
35

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

2,
57

1,
00

6
$ 

   
   

  
79

.4
9%

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

 - 
AD

M
IN

AR
BI

TR
AG

E 
R

EB
AT

E 
FE

E
6,

50
0

0
10

0.
00

%
AU

D
IT

36
,0

00
0

0.
00

%
BA

N
K 

FE
ES

0
0

10
0.

00
%

C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
 F

EE
S

0
0

10
0.

00
%

D
IS

SE
M

IN
AT

IO
N

 A
G

EN
T

3,
00

0
0

0.
00

%
D

IS
TR

IC
T 

C
O

U
N

SE
L

48
,0

00
27

,0
07

56
.2

6%
M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T
31

,1
20

18
,1

53
58

.3
3%

D
U

ES
, L

IC
EN

SE
S,

 F
EE

S
1,

05
0

1,
05

0
10

0.
00

%
AS

SE
SS

M
EN

T 
R

O
LL

6,
00

0
0

0.
00

%
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

17
5,

00
0

17
1,

63
0

98
.0

7%
FI

N
AN

C
IA

L 
AD

VI
SO

R
 - 

BO
N

D
0

0
0.

00
%

IM
PA

C
T 

FE
E 

AD
M

IN
IS

TR
AT

IO
N

0
0

0.
00

%
G

EN
ER

AL
 IN

SU
R

AN
C

E
34

,9
00

38
,0

15
10

8.
93

%
W

EB
SI

TE
4,

50
0

2,
62

5
58

.3
3%

LE
G

AL
 A

D
VE

R
TI

SI
N

G
3,

80
0

84
1

22
.1

4%
M

IS
C

EL
LA

N
EO

U
S

2,
00

0
11

6
5.

78
%

M
EE

TI
N

G
 R

O
O

M
0

0
0.

00
%

TR
AV

EL
 A

N
D

 P
ER

 D
IE

M
50

0
35

7
10

0.
00

%
 

83



SO
U

TH
ER

N
 G

R
O

VE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

TS
 #

1-
6 

R
EC

AP
FI

SC
AL

 Y
EA

R
 2

02
1/

20
22

O
C

TO
B

ER
 1

, 2
02

1 
- A

PR
IL

 3
0,

 2
02

2

FI
SC

AL
 Y

EA
R

 
FI

SC
AL

 Y
EA

R
 

20
21

/2
02

2
10

/0
1/

21
 - 

04
/3

0/
22

%
 O

f
AN

N
U

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

AC
TU

AL
 

B
ud

ge
t

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

O
FF

IC
E 

SU
PP

LI
ES

1,
00

0
14

3
0.

00
%

PO
ST

AG
E 

AN
D

 S
H

IP
PI

N
G

50
0

41
2

10
0.

00
%

C
O

PI
ES

2,
50

0
67

3
26

.9
1%

SU
PE

R
VI

SO
R

 F
EE

S
4,

80
0

0
0.

00
%

SU
PE

R
VI

SO
R

 P
AY

R
O

LL
 T

AX
ES

0
0

0.
00

%
SU

PE
R

VI
SO

R
 P

AY
R

O
LL

 F
EE

S
0

0
0.

00
%

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E

0
0

0.
00

%
TI

F/
SA

D
 R

EB
AT

E 
AN

AL
YS

IS
26

,0
10

60
,1

10
0.

00
%

TR
U

ST
EE

 S
ER

VI
C

ES
7,

00
0

4,
03

1
57

.5
9%

O
FF

IC
E 

R
EN

T
16

,5
00

11
,0

62
67

.0
4%

C
O

N
TI

N
G

EN
C

Y 
- A

D
M

IN
0

0
0.

00
%

C
AP

IT
AL

 O
U

TL
AY

0
0

0.
00

%
TI

M
 - 

C
AP

IT
AL

 (B
on

d/
D

ev
el

op
er

 F
un

de
d)

72
0,

00
0

19
6,

27
2

0.
00

%

TO
TA

L 
AD

M
IN

 E
XP

EN
SE

S
1,

13
0,

68
0

53
2,

49
6

47
.1

0%

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

 - 
M

AI
N

T
LA

KE
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E
45

,0
00

27
,4

25
60

.9
5%

BU
IL

D
IN

G
, B

R
ID

G
E,

 M
O

N
U

M
EN

T 
M

AI
N

T.
1,

00
0

0
0.

00
%

TI
M

 O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S
39

3,
70

0
0

0.
00

%
C

O
N

TI
N

G
EN

C
Y 

- M
AI

N
T.

10
0,

00
0

80
,6

00
80

.6
0%

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

AR
EA

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

C
E

0
83

5
0.

00
%

LA
KE

 P
O

R
TE

R
 S

ER
VI

C
E

0
0

0.
00

%
PA

IN
TI

N
G

0
0

0.
00

%
FI

EL
D

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

C
E

0
0

0.
00

%
EL

EC
TR

IC
25

,0
00

1,
26

0
5.

04
%

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 - 

M
AI

N
T.

17
5,

00
0

0
0.

00
%

FI
EL

D
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T
16

,0
00

9,
33

3
58

.3
3%

FO
U

N
TA

IN
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E
10

,0
00

12
,3

58
10

0.
00

%
H

YD
R

IL
LA

 T
R

EA
TM

EN
T

0
0.

00
%

LA
N

D
SC

AP
IN

G
 M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
C

E 
& 

M
AT

ER
IA

LS
46

,6
00

33
,2

58
71

.3
7%

M
IT

IG
AT

IO
N

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

C
E

82
,0

00
69

,6
74

84
.9

7%
IR

R
IG

AT
IO

N
2,

00
0

0
0.

00
%

 

84



SO
U

TH
ER

N
 G

R
O

VE
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

D
IS

TR
IC

TS
 #

1-
6 

R
EC

AP
FI

SC
AL

 Y
EA

R
 2

02
1/

20
22

O
C

TO
B

ER
 1

, 2
02

1 
- A

PR
IL

 3
0,

 2
02

2

FI
SC

AL
 Y

EA
R

 
FI

SC
AL

 Y
EA

R
 

20
21

/2
02

2
10

/0
1/

21
 - 

04
/3

0/
22

%
 O

f
AN

N
U

AL
 B

U
D

G
ET

AC
TU

AL
 

B
ud

ge
t

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

IR
R

IG
AT

IO
N

 P
AR

TS
 &

 R
EP

AI
R

8,
00

0
89

1.
11

%
PE

ST
 C

O
N

TR
O

L
2,

00
0

75
3.

75
%

R
O

AD
 R

EP
AI

R
0

0
0.

00
%

SE
C

U
R

IT
Y

40
,0

00
0

0.
00

%
FE

N
C

E 
R

EP
AI

R
0

0
0.

00
%

SI
D

EW
AL

K 
C

LE
AN

IN
G

/R
EP

AI
R

30
,0

00
0

0.
00

%
SI

G
N

AG
E

10
,0

00
39

5
0.

00
%

ST
R

EE
TL

IG
H

TS
2,

00
0

0
0.

00
%

ST
O

R
M

W
AT

ER
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T
50

,0
00

39
,2

55
78

.5
1%

TR
EE

/P
LA

N
T 

R
EP

LA
C

EM
EN

T 
& 

TR
IM

36
,0

00
0

0.
00

%
W

ET
LA

N
D

 U
PL

AN
D

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

C
E

0
0

0.
00

%
TO

TA
L 

M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

C
E 

EX
PE

N
SE

S
1,

07
4,

30
0

27
4,

55
7

25
.5

6%

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
2,

20
4,

98
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

7,
05

4
$ 

   
   

   
  

36
.6

0%

EX
C

ES
S 

/ (
SH

O
R

TF
AL

L)
1,

02
9,

37
4

$ 
   

   
   

  
1,

76
3,

95
2

$ 
   

   
  

PA
YM

EN
T 

TO
 T

R
U

ST
EE

 (2
01

9 
Bo

nd
)

(4
98

,9
44

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(5
04

,5
99

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

1.
13

%
PA

YM
EN

T 
TO

 T
R

U
ST

EE
 (2

02
0 

Bo
nd

)
(3

92
,7

79
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

97
,2

75
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
1.

14
%

BO
N

D
 P

R
EP

AY
M

EN
TS

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

6,
10

0)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
AL

AN
C

E
13

7,
65

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
76

5,
97

8
$ 

   
   

   
  

C
O

U
N

TY
 A

PP
R

AI
SE

R
 &

 T
AX

 C
O

LL
EC

TO
R

 F
EE

(6
8,

82
6)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
6,

44
3)

   
   

   
   

  
96

.5
4%

D
IS

C
O

U
N

TS
 F

O
R

 E
AR

LY
 P

AY
M

EN
TS

(6
8,

82
6)

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
5,

93
4)

   
   

   
   

  
95

.8
0%

N
ET

 E
XC

ES
S 

/ (
SH

O
R

TF
AL

L)
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
63

3,
60

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

85



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

01-3100 · Assessments 92,129.36 18,525.57 73,603.79 497.3%
01-3810 · Debt Assessment (CI - 2019) 532,102.45
01-3814 · Debt Assessment (CI - 2020) 418,929.65
01-3830 · Assessment Fees -66,442.71 -741.02 -65,701.69 8,966.4%
01-3831 · Assessment Discounts -65,934.00 -741.02 -65,192.98 8,897.7%
01-3840 · Debt Assess-Pd To Trustee(2019) -504,598.55
01-3841 · Debt Assess-Pd To Trustee(2020) -397,275.43
01-3901 · Bond Prepayments (2019) 96,100.00
01-3902 · Bond Prepayments (2020) 0.00
01-3911 · Bond Prepayments(19) To Trustee -96,100.00
01-9400 · Other Income 67,500.00
01-9405 · Stormwater Fees 36,388.43
01-9407 · Engineering Revenue Fees 56,646.60
01-9408 · Application Fee 18,737.00
01-9410 · Interest Income (GF) 874.84

Total Income 189,057.64 17,043.53 172,014.11 1,109.3%

Expense
01-1308 · Dissemination Agent 0.00 41.96 -41.96 0.0%
01-1310 · Engineering 1,673.12 2,447.51 -774.39 68.4%
01-1311 · Management Fees 176.99 435.24 -258.25 40.7%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 263.29 671.32 -408.03 39.2%
01-1317 · Travel and Per Diem 3.52 6.99 -3.47 50.4%
01-1318 · Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 83.91 -83.91 0.0%
01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
01-1325 · Supervisor Fees 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
01-1440 · Rents & Leases 107.86 230.77 -122.91 46.7%
01-1450 · Insurance 5,419.00 4,900.00 519.00 110.6%
01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 8.22 53.15 -44.93 15.5%
01-1511 · Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1512 · Miscellaneous 1.16 27.97 -26.81 4.1%
01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 4.04 6.99 -2.95 57.8%
01-1514 · Office Supplies 1.42 13.99 -12.57 10.2%
01-1516 · Copies 6.60 34.96 -28.36 18.9%
01-1518 · Web Site 437.50 750.00 -312.50 58.3%
01-1521 · Aquatic Contract 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%
01-1550 · Trustee Fees (GF) 0.00
01-1600 · TIM - Operations (BEEP) O&M 196,272.10 0.00 196,272.10 100.0%
01-1772 · TIF/SAD Rebate Analysis 585.99 363.77 222.22 161.1%
01-1801 · Landscaping Maintenance 0.00
01-1805 · Stormwater Management (GF) 39,255.38 0.00 39,255.38 100.0%
01-1807 · Irrigation Parts & Repair 0.00
01-1809 · Field Management 0.00
01-1812 · Signage & Amenities Repair 0.00
01-1814 · Electricity 0.00
01-1815 · Miscellaneous Maintenance 0.00
01-1817 · Common Area Maintenance 0.00
01-1818 · Fountain Maintenance & Chemical 0.00
01-1822 · Pest Control 0.00
01-1826 · Mitigation Maintenance 0.00

Total Expense 244,391.19 17,043.53 227,347.66 1,433.9%

Net Ordinary Income -55,333.55 0.00 -55,333.55 100.0%

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense

01-3920 · Capital Outlay 47,463.12

Total Other Expense 47,463.12

Net Other Income -47,463.12

2:21 PM Southern Grove CDD 1
05/23/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

86



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Net Income -102,796.67 0.00 -102,796.67 100.0%

2:21 PM Southern Grove CDD 1
05/23/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

87



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
01-1000 · Valley National 1068 2,782,420.83
01-1001 · Valley Bank-Special Bond Acct 1,001,162.08

Total Checking/Savings 3,783,582.91

Accounts Receivable
01-1200 · Accounts Receivable 18,936.60

Total Accounts Receivable 18,936.60

Total Current Assets 3,802,519.51

Other Assets
01-8122 · A/R St Lucie County Excess Fees -2,361.00

Total Other Assets -2,361.00

TOTAL ASSETS 3,800,158.51

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

01-2020 · Accounts Payable 98,735.40

Total Accounts Payable 98,735.40

Other Current Liabilities
01-2024 · Due To Other Gov Units-Fishkind 750.02
01-2025 · Deposits - Engr Deposit 107,469.50
01-2026 · Deferred Revenue - SAD/TIF 1,115,823.81
01-2027 · Due to CDD2 19,903.19
01-2028 · Due to CDD3 13,099.06
01-2029 · Due to CDD4 75,534.00
01-2030 · Due to CDD5 1,207,986.16
01-2031 · Due to CDD6 51,598.47

Total Other Current Liabilities 2,592,164.21

Total Current Liabilities 2,690,899.61

Total Liabilities 2,690,899.61

Equity
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 206,446.32
99-9999 · Retained Earnings 1,005,609.25
Net Income -102,796.67

Total Equity 1,109,258.90

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,800,158.51

2:22 PM Southern Grove CDD 1

05/23/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

88



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Other Assets

05-5151 · Amount Available in DSF (2019) 975,509.99
05-5152 · Amount Available In DSF (2020) 844,319.43
05-5153 · Amount Available In DSF (2021) 997,290.49
05-5155 · Amount To Be Provided 25,172,880.09

Total Other Assets 27,990,000.00

TOTAL ASSETS 27,990,000.00

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
05-5217 · Special Assess Debt - CI (2019) 6,650,000.00
05-5218 · Special Assess Debt - CI (2020) 5,610,000.00
05-5219 · Special Assessment Debt (2021) 15,730,000.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 27,990,000.00

Total Liabilities 27,990,000.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 27,990,000.00

2:31 PM Z Southern Grove 5

05/24/22 Long Term Debt Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

89



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
01-3100 · Assessments 42,365.80 45,006.33 -2,640.53 94.1%
01-3830 · Assessment Fees 0.00 -1,800.25 1,800.25 0.0%
01-3831 · Assessment Discounts 0.00 -1,800.25 1,800.25 0.0%
01-9410 · Interest Income (GF) 0.12

Total Income 42,365.92 41,405.83 960.09 102.3%

Expense
01-1308 · Dissemination Agent 0.00 269.50 -269.50 0.0%
01-1310 · Engineering 17,369.57 15,720.70 1,648.87 110.5%
01-1311 · Management Fees 1,837.17 2,795.59 -958.42 65.7%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 2,733.15 4,311.97 -1,578.82 63.4%
01-1317 · Travel and Per Diem 36.15 44.92 -8.77 80.5%
01-1318 · Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 539.00 -539.00 0.0%
01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
01-1325 · Supervisor Fees 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
01-1440 · Rents & Leases 1,119.48 1,482.24 -362.76 75.5%
01-1450 · Insurance 5,978.00 5,300.00 678.00 112.8%
01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 85.14 341.36 -256.22 24.9%
01-1511 · Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1512 · Miscellaneous 11.69 179.67 -167.98 6.5%
01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 41.67 44.92 -3.25 92.8%
01-1514 · Office Supplies 14.44 89.83 -75.39 16.1%
01-1516 · Copies 68.07 224.58 -156.51 30.3%
01-1518 · Web Site 437.50 750.00 -312.50 58.3%
01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%
01-1550 · Trustee Fees (GF) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1600 · TIM Operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1772 · SAD/TIF Rebate Analysis 6,083.34 2,336.55 3,746.79 260.4%

Total Expense 35,990.37 41,405.83 -5,415.46 86.9%

Net Income 6,375.55 0.00 6,375.55 100.0%

2:28 PM Southern Grove CDD 2

05/23/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

90



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
01-1000 · Valley National 1076 556.92

Total Checking/Savings 556.92

Other Current Assets
01-8200 · Due From CDD1 19,853.19

Total Other Current Assets 19,853.19

Total Current Assets 20,410.11

TOTAL ASSETS 20,410.11

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

30000 · Net Assets, Unrestricted 36,146.13
99-9999 · Retained Earnings -22,111.57
Net Income 6,375.55

Total Equity 20,410.11

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 20,410.11

2:28 PM Southern Grove CDD 2

05/23/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

91



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
01-3100 · Assessments 69,262.39 74,575.21 -5,312.82 92.9%
01-3830 · Assessment Fees 0.00 -2,983.01 2,983.01 0.0%
01-3831 · Assessment Discounts 0.00 -2,983.01 2,983.01 0.0%

Total Income 69,262.39 68,609.19 653.20 101.0%

Expense
01-1308 · Dissemination Agent 0.00 527.79 -527.79 0.0%
01-1310 · Engineering 33,256.63 30,789.21 2,467.42 108.0%
01-1311 · Management Fees 3,517.55 5,475.20 -1,957.65 64.2%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 5,233.02 8,445.04 -3,212.02 62.0%
01-1317 · Travel and Per Diem 69.22 87.97 -18.75 78.7%
01-1318 · Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 1,055.63 -1,055.63 0.0%
01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
01-1325 · Supervisor Fees 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
01-1440 · Rents & Leases 2,143.42 2,902.98 -759.56 73.8%
01-1450 · Insurance 5,706.00 5,300.00 406.00 107.7%
01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 163.02 668.57 -505.55 24.4%
01-1511 · Bank Fees 0.00
01-1512 · Miscellaneous 22.38 351.88 -329.50 6.4%
01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 79.80 87.97 -8.17 90.7%
01-1514 · Office Supplies 27.65 175.94 -148.29 15.7%
01-1516 · Copies 130.34 439.85 -309.51 29.6%
01-1518 · Web Site 437.50 750.00 -312.50 58.3%
01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%
01-1600 · TIM Operations 0.00
01-1772 · SAD/TIF Rebate Analysis 11,647.46 4,576.16 7,071.30 254.5%

Total Expense 62,608.99 68,609.19 -6,000.20 91.3%

Net Income 6,653.40 0.00 6,653.40 100.0%

11:39 AM Southern Grove CDD 3

05/24/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

92



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
01-1000 · Valley National 1084 50.60

Total Checking/Savings 50.60

Other Current Assets
01-8200 · Due From CDD1 13,049.06

Total Other Current Assets 13,049.06

Total Current Assets 13,099.66

TOTAL ASSETS 13,099.66

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

01-8801 · Equity Transfer 0.13
99-9999 · Retained Earnings 6,446.13
Net Income 6,653.40

Total Equity 13,099.66

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 13,099.66

11:40 AM Southern Grove CDD 3

05/24/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

93



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
01-3100 · Assessments 82,803.75 93,300.02 -10,496.27 88.7%
01-3810 · Debt Assessment 0.00 200,225.21 -200,225.21 0.0%
01-3820 · Debt Assess-Paid To Trustee 0.00 -184,207.20 184,207.20 0.0%
01-3830 · Assessment Fees 0.00 -11,741.01 11,741.01 0.0%
01-3831 · Assessment Discounts 0.00 -11,741.01 11,741.01 0.0%
01-9405 · Stormwater Fees 33,656.26 33,211.13 445.13 101.3%

Total Income 116,460.01 119,047.14 -2,587.13 97.8%

Expense
01-1308 · Dissemination Agent 0.00 445.63 -445.63 0.0%
01-1310 · Engineering 30,702.95 25,995.01 4,707.94 118.1%
01-1311 · Management Fees 3,247.44 4,622.64 -1,375.20 70.3%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 4,831.19 7,130.06 -2,298.87 67.8%
01-1317 · Travel and Per Diem 63.91 74.27 -10.36 86.1%
01-1318 · Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 891.26 -891.26 0.0%
01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
01-1325 · Supervisor Fees 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
01-1330 · Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0.00 1,340.56 -1,340.56 0.0%
01-1440 · Rents & Leases 1,978.83 2,450.96 -472.13 80.7%
01-1450 · Insurance 5,435.00 5,100.00 335.00 106.6%
01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 150.50 564.46 -413.96 26.7%
01-1511 · Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1512 · Miscellaneous 20.66 297.09 -276.43 7.0%
01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 73.67 74.27 -0.60 99.2%
01-1514 · Office Supplies 25.52 148.54 -123.02 17.2%
01-1516 · Copies 120.33 371.36 -251.03 32.4%
01-1518 · Web Site 437.50 750.00 -312.50 58.3%
01-1520 · Security 0.00 3,321.11 -3,321.11 0.0%
01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%
01-1550 · Trustee Fees (GF) 220.55 1,443.68 -1,223.13 15.3%
01-1600 · TIM Operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1772 · TIF/SAD Rebate Analysis 10,753.08 3,863.60 6,889.48 278.3%
01-1801 · Landscaping Maintenance 1,819.61 3,869.10 -2,049.49 47.0%
01-1802 · Tree/Plant Replacement & Trim 0.00 2,989.00 -2,989.00 0.0%
01-1805 · Stormwater Management (GF) 2,147.74 4,151.39 -2,003.65 51.7%
01-1807 · Irrigation Parts & Repair 4.86 664.22 -659.36 0.7%
01-1808 · Irrigation 0.00 166.06 -166.06 0.0%
01-1809 · Field Management 510.64 1,328.45 -817.81 38.4%
01-1810 · Engineering / Inspections 0.00 14,529.87 -14,529.87 0.0%
01-1812 · Signage & Amenities Repair 21.61 830.28 -808.67 2.6%
01-1814 · Electricity 68.91 2,075.70 -2,006.79 3.3%
01-1815 · Miscellaneous Maintenance 4,409.79 0.00 4,409.79 100.0%
01-1816 · Building Maintenance 0.00 83.03 -83.03 0.0%
01-1817 · Common Area Maintenance 45.68
01-1818 · Fountain Maintenance & Chemical 676.14 830.28 -154.14 81.4%
01-1820 · Contingency 0.00 8,302.78 -8,302.78 0.0%
01-1822 · Pest Control 4.10 166.06 -161.96 2.5%
01-1823 · Mitigation Maintenance 3,811.98 6,808.28 -2,996.30 56.0%
01-1825 · Lake Maintenance 1,500.49 3,736.25 -2,235.76 40.2%
01-1827 · Sidewalk Cleaning 0.00 2,490.83 -2,490.83 0.0%
01-1828 · Streetlight Maintenance 0.00 166.06 -166.06 0.0%

Total Expense 73,257.68 119,047.14 -45,789.46 61.5%

Net Income 43,202.33 0.00 43,202.33 100.0%

11:51 AM Southern Grove CDD 4

05/24/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

94



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
01-1000 · Valley National 1092 50.60

Total Checking/Savings 50.60

Other Current Assets
01-8200 · Due From CDD1 105,515.04

Total Other Current Assets 105,515.04

Total Current Assets 105,565.64

TOTAL ASSETS 105,565.64

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

01-8801 · Equity Transfer 0.13
99-9999 · Retained Earnings 62,363.18
Net Income 43,202.33

Total Equity 105,565.64

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 105,565.64

11:52 AM Southern Grove CDD 4

05/24/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

95



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
01-3100 · Assessments 374,033.82 416,641.75 -42,607.93 89.8%
01-3810 · Debt Assessment 0.00 704,605.00 -704,605.00 0.0%
01-3820 · Debt Assess-Paid To Trustee 0.00 -648,236.60 648,236.60 0.0%
01-3830 · Assessment Fees 0.00 -44,849.87 44,849.87 0.0%
01-3831 · Assessment Discounts 0.00 -44,849.87 44,849.87 0.0%
01-6000 · Developer Contribution 0.00 1,113,700.00 -1,113,700.00 0.0%
01-9405 · Stormwater Fees 563,486.30 350,453.98 213,032.32 160.8%
01-9410 · Interest Income (GF) 6.04

Total Income 937,526.16 1,847,464.39 -909,938.23 50.7%

Expense
01-1308 · Dissemination Agent 0.00 1,082.33 -1,082.33 0.0%
01-1310 · Engineering 62,487.65 63,135.65 -648.00 99.0%
01-1311 · Management Fees 6,609.31 11,227.32 -4,618.01 58.9%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 9,832.61 17,317.21 -7,484.60 56.8%
01-1317 · Travel and Per Diem 130.07 180.38 -50.31 72.1%
01-1318 · Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 2,164.65 -2,164.65 0.0%
01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
01-1325 · Supervisor Fees 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
01-1330 · Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0.00 3,255.90 -3,255.90 0.0%
01-1332 · Field Management 8,549.43 14,018.16 -5,468.73 61.0%
01-1440 · Rents & Leases 4,027.38 5,952.79 -1,925.41 67.7%
01-1450 · Insurance 9,771.00 9,000.00 771.00 108.6%
01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 306.31 1,370.95 -1,064.64 22.3%
01-1511 · Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1512 · Miscellaneous 42.06 721.55 -679.49 5.8%
01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 149.94 180.39 -30.45 83.1%
01-1514 · Office Supplies 51.95 360.78 -308.83 14.4%
01-1516 · Copies 244.91 901.94 -657.03 27.2%
01-1518 · Web Site 437.50 750.00 -312.50 58.3%
01-1520 · Security 0.00 35,045.40 -35,045.40 0.0%
01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%
01-1550 · Trustee Fees (GF) 3,692.68 3,506.35 186.33 105.3%
01-1600 · BEEP - Capital 0.00 720,000.00 -720,000.00 0.0%
01-1601 · BEEP - O&M 0.00 393,700.00 -393,700.00 0.0%
01-1772 · SAD/TIF Rebate Analysis 21,885.03 9,383.76 12,501.27 233.2%
01-1801 · Landscaping Maintenance 30,464.78 40,827.89 -10,363.11 74.6%
01-1802 · Tree/Plant Replacement & Trim 0.00 31,540.86 -31,540.86 0.0%
01-1805 · Stormwater Management (GF) 35,958.38 43,806.75 -7,848.37 82.1%
01-1806 · Lake Maintenance 25,122.01 39,426.07 -14,304.06 63.7%
01-1807 · Irrigation Parts & Repair 81.54 7,009.08 -6,927.54 1.2%
01-1808 · Irrigation 0.00 1,752.27 -1,752.27 0.0%
01-1810 · Engineering / Inspections 0.00 153,323.61 -153,323.61 0.0%
01-1812 · Signage & Amenities Repair 361.83 8,761.35 -8,399.52 4.1%
01-1814 · Electricity 1,153.74 21,903.37 -20,749.63 5.3%
01-1815 · Mitigation Maintenance 63,821.72 71,843.07 -8,021.35 88.8%
01-1816 · Building Maintenance 0.00 876.13 -876.13 0.0%
01-1817 · Common Area Maintenance 764.88
01-1818 · Fountain Maintenance & Chemical 11,320.22 8,761.35 2,558.87 129.2%
01-1820 · Contingency 0.00 87,613.49 -87,613.49 0.0%
01-1822 · Pest Control 68.71 1,752.27 -1,683.56 3.9%
01-1826 · Streetlights 0.00 1,752.27 -1,752.27 0.0%
01-1829 · Sidewalk Cleaning/Repair 0.00 26,284.05 -26,284.05 0.0%
01-1830 · Misc Maintenance 73,830.52 0.00 73,830.52 100.0%

Total Expense 371,341.16 1,847,464.39 -1,476,123.23 20.1%

Net Income 566,185.00 0.00 566,185.00 100.0%

2:01 PM Southern Grove CDD 5

05/24/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

96



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
01-1000 · Valley National 1106 3,286.78

Total Checking/Savings 3,286.78

Other Current Assets
01-8154 · Deposits 4,256.00
01-8200 · Due From CDD1 1,148,847.18
01-8201 · Due from Other Funds 3,553.00

Total Other Current Assets 1,156,656.18

Total Current Assets 1,159,942.96

TOTAL ASSETS 1,159,942.96

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

01-2025 · Due to CDD1 -56,560.00

Total Other Current Liabilities -56,560.00

Total Current Liabilities -56,560.00

Total Liabilities -56,560.00

Equity
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 6,979.39
99-9999 · Retained Earnings 643,338.57
Net Income 566,185.00

Total Equity 1,216,502.96

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,159,942.96

2:02 PM Southern Grove CDD 5

05/24/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

97



Oct '21 - Apr 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
01-3100 · Assessments 67,973.48 103,342.43 -35,368.95 65.8%
01-3810 · Debt Assessment 0.00 64,432.95 -64,432.95 0.0%
01-3820 · Debt Assess-Paid To Trustee 0.00 -59,278.31 59,278.31 0.0%
01-3830 · Assessment Fees 0.00 -6,711.02 6,711.02 0.0%
01-3831 · Assessment Discounts 0.00 -6,711.02 6,711.02 0.0%
01-9405 · Stormwater Fees 18,009.57 16,334.90 1,674.67 110.3%

Total Income 85,983.05 111,409.93 -25,426.88 77.2%

Expense
01-1308 · Dissemination Agent 0.00 632.78 -632.78 0.0%
01-1310 · Engineering 26,140.27 36,911.91 -10,771.64 70.8%
01-1311 · Management Fees 2,764.85 6,563.99 -3,799.14 42.1%

01-1315 · Legal Fees 4,113.24 10,124.41 -6,011.17 40.6%
01-1317 · Travel and Per Diem 54.41 105.46 -51.05 51.6%
01-1318 · Assessment/Tax Roll 0.00 1,265.55 -1,265.55 0.0%
01-1320 · Audit Fees 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
01-1325 · Supervisor Fees 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
01-1330 · Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0.00 1,903.54 -1,903.54 0.0%
01-1440 · Rents & Leases 1,684.76 3,480.27 -1,795.51 48.4%
01-1450 · Insurance 5,706.00 5,300.00 406.00 107.7%
01-1480 · Legal Advertisements 128.13 801.52 -673.39 16.0%
01-1511 · Bank Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1512 · Miscellaneous 17.59 421.85 -404.26 4.2%
01-1513 · Postage and Delivery 62.72 105.46 -42.74 59.5%
01-1514 · Office Supplies 21.73 210.93 -189.20 10.3%
01-1516 · Copies 102.45 527.31 -424.86 19.4%
01-1518 · Web Site 437.50 750.00 -312.50 58.3%
01-1520 · Security 0.00 1,633.49 -1,633.49 0.0%
01-1540 · Dues, License & Subscriptions 175.00 175.00 0.00 100.0%
01-1550 · Trustee Fees (GF) 118.02 2,049.97 -1,931.95 5.8%
01-1600 · BEEP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
01-1772 · SAD/TIF Rebate Analysis 9,155.10 5,486.16 3,668.94 166.9%
01-1801 · Landscaping Maintenance 973.68 1,903.02 -929.34 51.2%
01-1802 · Tree/Plant Replacement & Trim 0.00 1,470.14 -1,470.14 0.0%
01-1805 · Stormwater Management (GF) 1,149.26 2,041.86 -892.60 56.3%
01-1806 · Lake Maint 802.91 1,837.68 -1,034.77 43.7%
01-1807 · Irrigation Parts & Repair 2.60 326.70 -324.10 0.8%
01-1808 · Irrigation 0.00 81.67 -81.67 0.0%
01-1809 · Field Management 273.24 653.40 -380.16 41.8%
01-1810 · Engineering / Inspections 0.00 7,146.52 -7,146.52 0.0%
01-1812 · Signage & Amenities Repair 11.56 408.37 -396.81 2.8%
01-1814 · Electricity 36.87 1,020.93 -984.06 3.6%
01-1815 · Miscellaneous Maintenance 2,359.69
01-1816 · Building Maintenance 0.00 40.84 -40.84 0.0%
01-1817 · Common Area Maintenance 24.44
01-1818 · Fountain Maintenance & Chemical 361.80 408.37 -46.57 88.6%
01-1820 · Contingency 0.00 4,083.72 -4,083.72 0.0%
01-1822 · Pest Control 2.19 81.67 -79.48 2.7%
01-1825 · Mitigation Maintenance 2,039.80 3,348.65 -1,308.85 60.9%
01-1826 · Sidewalk Cleaning/Repair 0.00 1,225.12 -1,225.12 0.0%
01-1827 · Streetlight 0.00 81.67 -81.67 0.0%

Total Expense 58,719.81 111,409.93 -52,690.12 52.7%

Net Income 27,263.24 0.00 27,263.24 100.0%

2:21 PM Southern Grove CDD 6

05/24/22 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October 2021 through April 2022

98



Apr 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
01-1000 · Valley National 1114 50.60

Total Checking/Savings 50.60

Other Current Assets
01-8200 · Due From CDD1 67,618.16

Total Other Current Assets 67,618.16

Total Current Assets 67,668.76

TOTAL ASSETS 67,668.76

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

99-9999 · Retained Earnings 40,405.52
Net Income 27,263.24

Total Equity 67,668.76

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 67,668.76

2:22 PM Southern Grove CDD 6

05/24/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of April 30, 2022

99


	Cover Page
	Agenda 
	Proof of Publication
	Minutes 4-6-22
	WA# 19-144-182; 9980 Belterra Phase 1 Plat 2
	WA #19-144-183; Plat No. 39
	WA #19-144-184; Plat No. 40 Replat 
	WA #19-144-185; AHS Residential - Irrigation
	CPM Services Contract; 2nd Addendum
	Memo No. 22-03; Dist. No. 6 - Notice of Qualifying Period
	Bond Req. No 15 - C&T
	Partial Abandonment & Termination of Water Management Easement
	Financial Report - April 2022



